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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Nerofix Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Nerofix Private Limited (“the
Company"), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2022, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (“the Act"”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2022, its loss including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the ‘Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements'
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board of Directors Report, but does not include the
standalone financial statements and our auditor’'s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’'s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows
and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
ccepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133
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of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irreqularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3Xi) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadeguate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
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and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order"), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the “Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure 2" to this report;

(g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2022 has been
paid / provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

(h) Withrespect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.
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iv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other

than as disclosed in the note 41 to the financial statements, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other

c)

than as disclosed in the note 41 to the financial statements, no funds have been
received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Anil Jobanputra

Partner

Membership Number: 110759

UDIN: 22110759AICPGR5054

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: 29 April 2022
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements" of our report of even date on the financial statements of Nerofix Private Limited

Re: Nerofix Private Limited (“the Company'")

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of
our knowledge and belief, we state that:

(i) (@ (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles
assets.

(b) All Property, Plant and Equipment have not been physically verified by the management
during the year but there is a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The title deeds of immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) are held in the
name of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use
assets) or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2022.

(e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and
rules made thereunder.

(i) (@ The Management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year. In our opinion the coverage and the procedure of such verification by the
management is appropriate. Discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each class of
inventory were not noticed in respect of such physical verification.

(b) As disclosed in note 18 to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from banks during the year
on the basis of security of current assets of the Company. Based on the records examined
by us in the normal course of audit of the financial statements, the quarterly
returns/statements filed by the Company with such banks and financial institutions are in
agreement with the books of accounts of the Company.

(iii) During the year the Company has not made investments, provided loans, advances in the
nature of loans, stood guarantee or provided security to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(iiiXa), (b), (c), (d), (e) and (f) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(iv) There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and securities given in respect of which
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and
accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

) The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts
which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies
Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.




SRBC&CO LLP

Chartered Accountants

(vi)
(vii) (@)
(b)
(viii)
(ix) (a)
(b)
©
(d)
(e)
4))
0@
(b)
(xi) (@)
(b)

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to
the rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under
section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, related to the manufacture of adhesives and
are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts and records have been made
and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the same.

The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess
and other statutory dues applicable to it. According to the information and explanations
given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period
of more than six months from the date they became payable.

There are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess,
and other statutory dues have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in
the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income
during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on
short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or Joint Venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ix)e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or Joint Venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer /
further public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on
clause 3(x)a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /
fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and
hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

No material fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed
or reported during the year.

During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 has been filed by us in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received
by the Company during the year.
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(xii)

(xiiD)

The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xiiXa), (b) and (c¢) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188 of Companies
Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section
177 are not applicable to the Company and accordingly the requirements to report under
clause 3(xiii) of the Order insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable
to the Company.

(xiv)(a) The Company has implemented internal audit system on a voluntary basis which is

commensurate with the size of the Company and nature of its business though it is not
required to have an internal audit system under Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the

xv)

period under audit have been considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)(a) The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not

applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)}a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities

without obtained a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India
as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by

Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xviXc) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) There are no other Companies part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report on

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

clause 3(xviXd) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has incurred cash losses in the current year amounting to Rs. 13.85 lakhs.
In the immediately preceding financial year the Company had incurred cash losses
amounting to Rs. 28.46 lakhs.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis.of the financial ratios disclosed in note 40 to the financial statements, ageing
and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting
the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable
of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is
not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.
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(xx) The provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable and
accordingly, the requirements to report on clause (xx) (a) and (b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

ﬁ'f\w-\/\/\’ s I
¢ .

per Anil Jobanputra

Partner

Membership Number: 110759

UDIN: 22110759AICPGR5054

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: 29 April 2022
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Annexure 2 - To the Independent Auditor's report of even date on the financial statements of
Nerofix Private Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Nerofix
Private Limited (“the Company’) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’'s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on [the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAl. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls with reference to these financial statements was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these
financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
ecessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
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accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Anil Jobanputra
Partner
Membership Number: 110759

UDIN: 22110759AICPGR5054

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: 29 April 2022



NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2022

ASSETS
Non-current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
Capital Work in Process
Right of Use Asset (ROU)
Intangible Assets

Financial Assets:
Other Financial Assets

Non Current Tax Assets (Net)
Other Non-current Assets
Total Non-current Assets
Current Assets
Inventories

Financial Assets:
Trade Receivables

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets

Total Assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital
Other Equity

Total Equity
Liabilities
Non-current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities:
Borrowings

Deferred Tax Liabilities (net)
Provisions
Total Non-current Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities:

Borrowings

Trade Payables
Total Outstanding dues of Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises
Total Outstanding dues of creditors other than
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Other Financial Liabilities

Other Current Liabilities

Short Term Provisions
Total Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Total Equity and Liabilities

Significant Accounting Policies

Amount in Lakhs

Not As at As at
i 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021
3 1,990.38 2,058.11
g 387
363.77 36878
5 806,80 997.64
3,160.95 1.428.40
6 1291 10.23
1291 1023
7 014 517
8 210 216
3,176.10 3,445.96
9 1,72241 1337.18
10 2,357.56 2,190.82
1 025 054
235781 ° 219136
12 131.87 180.11
4212.09 3,708.65
7,388.19 7,154.61
N it e
13 2,000.00 2,000.00
14 (826.80) (457.79)
1,173.20 1,54221
15 1,093.75 1.718.75
1,093.75 1,71875
16 . .
17 2293 11.03
1,116.68 1,729.78
18 1,467.57 132643
19
108 54 269.19
325163 2,113.06
482774 3,708.68
20 162.56 157.41
21 101 84 1430
22 6.17 223
5,09831 3,882.62
6,214.99 5,612.40
7,388.19 7,154.61
P - s
2.1

The notes referred to above form an integral part of these Financial Statements

As per our attached report of even date

ForSRBC & COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 324982E/E300003

Partner
Membership No. 110759

Mumbai
April 29, 2022

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of Nerofix Private Limite

rashant Pai arag Oak
Director Chief Financial Officer
DIN 08115481

Girish Nachane

Director e S— Corfipany Secretary

DIN 08736429 ’/(‘(H N ACS 20207
b

Mumbai i AL \\

April 29, 2022

] .',:r(/,‘:: ‘ /

Q)




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022
Amount in Lakhs

Nit Year Ended Year Ended
ot 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021
Income
Revenue from Operations 23 11,041.68 6,997.53
Other Income 24 7.74 2.90
Total Income 11,049.42 7,000.43
Expenses
Cost of Materials Consumed ) 25 9,068.23 5,267.82
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and Work-in-progress 26 (201.65) (275.08)
Employee Benefits Expense 27 657.50 565.79
Finance Costs 28 231.18 255.24
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 29 336.78 336.99
Other Expenses 30 1,325.51 1,221.12
Total Expenses 11,417.55 7,371.88
Profit Before Exceptional Item and Tax (368.13) (371.45)
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax (368.13) (371.45)
Tax Expense
Deferred Tax 16 - -
Total Tax Expense - -
Profit/(Loss) for the period (368.13) (371.45)
Other Comprehensive Income < s
a. (i) Items that will not be reclassified to Statement
of Profit and Loss
(a) Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Liability (0.88) -
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (369.01) (371.45)
Earnings per Equity Share:
Basic and Diluted (1.85) (1.86)
Significant Accounting Policies 2.1

The notes referred to above form an integral part of these Financial Statements

As per our attached report of even date

For SRBC & COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 324982E/E300003

per Anil Jobanputra

Prashant Pai
Director
DIN 08115481

£

Girish Nachane

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of Ner

arag Oak

Chief Financial Officer

Ruknfini Subramanian

Partner Director Company
Membership No. 110759 DIN 08736429 ACS 20207
Mumbai Mumbai

April 29, 2022 April 29, 2022




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022

Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses
Finance Costs
Provision for Doubtful debts

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes
Working Capital Adjustments

Adjustment for (increase) / decrease in operating assets:
Inventories

Trade Receivables

Loans and Other Assets

Adjustment for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Trade payables and Other liabilities

Direct Taxes Paid (net)
Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities

Cash Flow From Investing Activities

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment, Right of Use Asset

and Other Intangible Assets

Net cash flows from / (used in) investing activities

Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Proceeds/(Repayment) from long term borrowings
Proceeds from issue of equity shares

Proceeds from Short term borrowings

Interest Paid

Net cash flows from / (used in) financing activities

Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and Cash Equivalents as the end of the year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year, the
components being:

Cash on Hand

Banks Balances

Net Increase / (Decrease) as disclosed above

Notes:
(i) Figures in brackets are outflows/deductions.

Year Ended
31 March, 2022

Amount in Lakhs

Year Ended
31 March, 2021

336.78
231.18
17.50

(385.21)
(184.24)
45.61

1,089.34

(69.32)

(625.00)

141.14
(234.98)

0.25

(368.13)

585.46
217.33

782.84
(5.03)

787.87

(69.32)

(718.84)

(0.29)
0.54

0.25

0.25
0.25

(ii) The above Cash Flow Statement is prepared under the “Indirect Method' as set out in the Indian

Accounting Standards (Ind AS-7) — Statement of Cash Flows.

(371.45)
336.99
255.24
6.00
598.23
226.78
(559.98)
(511.75)
(148.85)
630.92
(362.88)
517
(368.05)
(53.20)
(53.20)
(156.25)
70143
(259.08)
286.10
(135.15)
135.69
0.54
0.54
0.54
0.54

As per our attached report of even date
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NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022

A - Equity Share Capital

Number of Shares

Amount in Lakhs

Balance as at 1April, 2020 2,00,00,000 2,000.00
Issued during the period e -
Balance as at 31 March, 2021 2,00,00,000 2,000.00
Issued during the period - -
Balance as at 31 March, 2022 2,00,00,000 2,000.00

B - Other Equity

Amount in Lakhs

Particulars Retained Earnings Total

Balance as at 1 April, 2021 (457.79) (457.79)
Profit/(Loss) for the period (368.13) (368.13)
Other Comprehensive Income/(Expense) (0.88) (0.88)
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (826.80) (826.80)
Balance as at 31 March, 2022 (826.80) (826.80)

Amount in Lakhs

Particulars Retained Earnings Total
Balance as at 1 April, 2020 (86.34) (86.34)
Profit/(Loss) for the period (371.45) (371.45)
Other Comprehensive Income - -
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (457.79) (457.79)
Balance as at 31 March, 2021 (457.79) (457.79)

The notes referred to above form an integral part of these Financial Statements

As per our attached report of even date
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Director
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Director
DIN 08736429
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April 29, 2022

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of Nerofix Private Limited
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Chief Financial Officer
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NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2022

Note 2.1: Significant Accounting Policies

i) Classification of Assets and Liabilities

Schedule 111 to the Act, requires assets and liabilities to be classified as either Current or Non-current.

(a)

(b)
(c)

(d)

An asset shall be classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

(i) it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating cycle;

(if) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
(iii) it is expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting date; or

(iv) it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting date.

All assets other than current assets shall be classified as non-current.

A liability shall be classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
(i) it is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

(i) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

(iii) it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or

(iv) the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity
instruments do not affect its classification.

All liabilities other than current liabilities shall be classified as non-current.

i) Operating Cycle

An operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents.
The Company has ascertained the operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current or non-current classification of
assets and liabilities.

iii) Property, Plant and Equipment

(a) Recognition and Measurement

An item of Property, Plant and Equipment that qualifies for recognition as an asset is initially measured at its cost and then
carried at the cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment, if any.

The cost of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable
purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates and any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. The initial estimate of
the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located is included in the cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment.

The cost of a self-constructed item of Property, Plant and Equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct labor, any other
costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and
removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

Tangible Propcrty, Plant and Equipment under construction are disclosed as Capital Work-in-progress. Item of Capital Work-in-
progress is carried at cost using the principles of valuation of item of property, plant and equipment till it is ready for use, the
manner in which intended by management.




(b) Subsequent Expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will
flow to the Company.

(¢) Depreciation

The depreciable amount of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is allocated on a systematic basis over its useful life. The
Company provides depreciation on the straight line method. The Company believes that straight line method reflects the pattern
in which the asset’s future economic benefits are expected to be consumed by the Company. Based on internal technical
evaluation, the management believes useful lives of the assets are appropriate. The depreciation method is reviewed at least at
each financial year-end and, if there has been a significant change in the expected pattern of consumption of the future
economic benefits embodied in the asset, the method is changed to reflect the changed pattern. Such a change is accounted for
as a change in an accounting estimate in accordance with Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Frraore

Each part of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is
depreciated separately.

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless it is included in the carrying
amount of another asset.

The estimated useful lives for the current period is as follows:

Useful Lives Useful Lives
P (in years)_ (in ycars)
— as per Companies Act, — as estimated by
2013 the Company

Buildings 30-60 30-60
Plant and Equipments 10-20 10-20
Furniture and Fixtures 10 10
Office Equipments 5 5
Computers 3-6 3-6

Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (upto) the date on which asset is ready for use
(disposed off).

(d) Disposal

The carrying amount of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of Property, Plant and
Equipment is included in Statement of Profit and Loss when the item is derecognised.




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD 01 APRIL, 2021 TO 31 MARCH, 2022

Note 1:

Note 2:

ii)

Corporate Information

Nerofix Private Limited (the “Company’) is a private limited company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act. The
Company’s has been incorporated on 17 July, 2019. The registered office of the Company is located at B-202, 2nd Floor Plot No.D13/1, TTC Industrial Area
Turbhe (MIDC), Thane Belapur Road Navi Mumbai 400705. The Company is principally engaged in the manufacturing of Adhesives, Construction
Chemicals and Sealants.

Kansai Nerolac Paints Limited is holding company of Nerofix Private Limited and is based and listed in India. Financial Statements of Kansai Nerolac
Private Limited are available on public domain,

Basis of Preparation
Statement of compliance
The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting

Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act as amended from time to
time.

Details of the Company’s Accounting Policies are included in Note 2.1.
Functional and Presentation currency

The Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional currency.

Basis of measurement

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for financial assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value,

Use of estimates and judgements

Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty:

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities and disclosures as at date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of the revenues and expenses for the years presented. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions and conditions.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Business combinations and Intangible Assets

Business combinations are accounted for using Ind AS 103, Business Combinations. Ind AS 103 requires the identifiable intangible assets and contingent
consideration to be fair valued in order to ascertain the net fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree. Significant
estimates are required to be made in determining the value of contingent consideration and intangible assets. These valuations are conducted by independent
valuation experts.

Critical Judgments

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgments, which have the most significant effect on the
amount recognised in the financial statements.

Discount rate used to determine the carrying amount of the Company’s defined benefit obligation.
In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies
consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation.




i)

Contingences and Commitments

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigations and other claims against the Company. Where the potential liabilities have a
low probability of crystallising or are very difficult to quantify reliably, we treat them as contingent liabilities. Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are
not provided for in the financial statements. Although there can be no assurance regarding the final outcome of the legal proceedings, we do not expect them
to have a materially adverse impact on our financial position or profitability.

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment
As described in Note 2.1(ii1)(c), the Company reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment at the end of each
reporting period.

Impairment Allowances for Trade Receivables

The Company makes Impairment Allowances for Trade Receivables based on an assessment of the recoverability of trade and other receivables. The
identification of impairment allowance requires use of judgments and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, such difference
will impact the carrying value of the trade and other receivables and impairment allowances in the period in which such estimate has been changed.

Allowances for Inventories
Management reviews the inventory age listing on a periodic basis. This review involves comparison of the carrying value of the aged inventory items with the

respective net realizable value. The purpose is to ascertain whether an allowance is required to be made in the financial statements for any obsolete and slow-
moving items. Management is satisfied that adequate allowance for obsolete and slow-moving inventories has been made in the financial statements.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets,
their fair value is measured using valuation techniques, including the discounted cash flow model, which involve various judgements and assumptions.

Defined Benefit Plans

The costs and present value of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other long-term employee benefits are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in future. These include the determination of appropriate discount
rate, salary escalation rate, expected rate of return on assets and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature,
defined benefit plans are highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2022

iv) Lease

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value asset.
The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use asset representing the right to use the underlying asset.

(a) Right of Use Asset (ROU)

The Company recognises Right of use asset at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right
of use asset are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of Right of use asset includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made
at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right of use asset are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the asset, as follows:

[Leasehold land 75 Years ]

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The Right of use asset are also subject to impairment. Refer to the
accounting policies on Impairment of non-financial asset.

(b) Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over
the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate, Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs. In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from
a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Lease liability, if any and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments, if any have been classified as
financing cash flows.

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value asset

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of property, machinery and equipment (i.e., those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-
value asset recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and
leases of low-value asset are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as
operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as
rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2022

v) Other Intangible Assets
(a) Recognition and Measurement

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance. Intangible assets are initially measured at
its cost and then carried at the cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment, if any.

(b) Subsequent Expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to
which it relates. All other expenditures are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.

(¢) Amortisation

The Company amortises Other Intangible Assets on the straight line method. The Company believes that straight line method
reflects the pattern in which the asset’s future economic benefits are expected to be consumed by the Company. The
amortisation method is reviewed at least at each financial year-end and, if there has been a significant change in the expected
pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset, the method is changed to reflect the changed
pattern. Such a change is accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate in accordance with Ind AS 8 — Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.

The estimated useful lives for the current period is as follows:

Useful Lives (in years)
Adsnt Class - as estimated by the Company
Technical Know How 10
Non Compete Fee 5
Customer Relationship 5




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2022

vi) Employee Benefits

(a) Short-term Employee Benefits:

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided.
A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g., under short-term cash bonus, if the Company has a present legal
or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can
be estimated reliably.

(b) Post-Employment Benefits:

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions and will have no
legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts.

(i) Provident and Family Pension Fund

The eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive post employment benefits in respect of provident and family pension
fund, in which both the employees and the Company make monthly contributions at a specified percentage of the employees’
eligible salary (currently 12% of employees’ eligible salary). The contributions are made to the Regional Provident Fund
Commissioner (RPFC) which are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.

In respect of contribution to RPFC, the Company has no further obligations beyond making the contribution, and hence, such
employee benefit plan is classified as Defined Contribution Plan. The Company’s contribution is recognised as an expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.




(c)

Defined Benefit Plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Company’s net obligation in
respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current
and prior periods. discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets,

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.
When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic
benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan (‘the asset
ceiling’). In order to calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any minimum funding requirements.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding
interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income. The
Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit
liability (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of
contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in
Statement of Profit and 1 nss

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service (past
service cost’ or ‘past service gain’) or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Company
recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

Gratuity

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. The plan provides
a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount
equivalent to 15 days to one month salary payable for each completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six months
depending upon category of employee. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. The Company accounts for gratuity
benefits payable in future based on an independent external actuarial valuation carried out at the end of the year using the projected
unit credit method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised as Other Comprehensive Income.

Other Long-term Employee Benefits - Compensated Absences

The Company provides for encashment of leave or leave with pay subject to certain rules. The employees are entitled to accumulate
leave subject to certain limits for future encashment/availment. The Company makes provision for compensated absences based on
an independent actuarial valuation carried out at the end of the year. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2022

vii) Inventories
(a) Measurement of Inventory

The Company measures its inventories at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

(b) Cost of Inventories

The cost of inventories shall comprise all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the invenitories to their
present location and condition.

The costs of purchase of inventories comprise the purchase price, import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable
by the entity from the taxing authorities), and transport, handling and other costs directly attributable to the acquisition of finished goods,
materials and services. Trade discounts, rebates and other similar items are deducted in determining the costs of purchase.

The costs of conversion of inventories include costs directly related to the units of production and a systematic allocation of fixed and
variable production overheads that are incurred in converting materials into finished goods.

Other costs are included in the cost of inventories only to the extent that they are incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

The cost of inventories is assigned by weighted average cost formula. The Company uses the same cost formula for all inventories having a
similar nature and use to the Company.

(c) Net realisable value

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale. Net realisable value is ascertained for each item of inventories with reference to the selling prices of
related finished products.

The practice of writing inventories down below cost to net realisable value is consistent with the view that assets should not be carried in
excess of amounts expected to be realised from their sale or use. Inventories are usually written down to net realisable value item by item.
Estimates of net realisable value of finished goods is based on the most reliable evidence available at the time the estimates are made, of the
amount the inventories are expected to realise. These estimates take into consideration fluctuations of price or cost directly relating to
events occurring after the end of the period to the extent that such events confirm conditions existing at the end of the period. Materials and
other supplies held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be
incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. However, when a decline in the price of materials indicates that the cost of the
finished products exceeds net realisable value, the materials are written down to net realisable value.

Amount of any reversal of write-down of inventories shall be recognised as an expense as when the event occurs.
(d) Valuation of Spare parts, stand-by equipments and servicing equipments
Spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment are recognised as Property, Plant and Equipment if and only if it is probable that

future economic benefits associated with them will flow to the Company and their cost can be measured reliably. Otherwise such items are
classified and recognised as Inventory.




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2022

viii) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and bank balances. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting short-term
cash commitments rather than for investment or other purposes. For an investment to qualify as a cash equivalent it must be readily convertible to a
known amount of cash and be subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Therefore, an investment normally qualifies as a cash equivalent
only when it has a short maturity of, say, three months or less from the date of acquisition. For the purpose of Cash Flow Statement cash and cash
equivalent includes bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand if any.

ix) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised
as finance cost. Expected future operating losses are not provided for.




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2022

x) Revenue Recognition
Sale of Goods

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised goods to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration which the
Company expects to receive in exchange for those goods.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control is transferred to the customer which is usually on
dispatch / delivery.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume discounts, rebates, scheme
allowances, price concessions, incentives, and returns, if any, as specified in the contracts with the customers. Revenue excludes taxes
collected from customers on behalf of the government. Accruals for discounts/incentives and returns are estimated (using the most likely
method) based on underlying schemes and agreements with customers. Due to the short nature of credit period given to customers, there
is no financing component in the contract.

Interest Income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method as set out in Ind AS 109 — Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement, when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Company and the amount of
the revenue can be measured reliably. The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a
financial liability (or group of financial assets or financial liabilities) and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period.

xi) Foreign Currency Transactions

Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates whereas presentation currency
is the currency in which the financial statements are presented. Indian Rupee is the functional as well as presentation currency for the
Company.

A foreign currency transaction is recorded, on initial recognition in the functional currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount
the spot exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

At the end of each reporting period, foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate whereas non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction;
and non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the
fair value was measured.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at rates different from those at which
they were translated on initial recognition during the period or in previous Financial Statements are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss in the period in which they arise. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income. Conversely, when a gain or loss on a non-
monetary item is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, any exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised in Statement of
Profit and Loss.




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2022

xii) Taxation
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Income tax

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax expense. It is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent that it relates to a
business combination or to an item recognised directly in Equity or in Other Comprehensive Income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or
receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after
considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and
tax credits. Deferred tax is not recognised for:

a temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction:

b taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill,

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. The
existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses,
the Company recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other
evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets — unrecognised
or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/reduced to the extent that it is probable/no longer probable respectively that
the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the
reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to
income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

MUMBAI
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NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2022

Note 4: Right of Use Asset (ROU)

Amount in Lakhs
Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation Net Block
As at
Description As at i 2 As at < Asat As at
Acquisition/| Deductions| 31 March, Additions | Deductions
1 April, 2021 Additions 2022 1 April, 2021 31 March, 2022 | 31 March, 2022
Leasehold Land 37537 - - 375.37 6.59 501 - 11.6C 363.77
(375.37) (375.37) (1 58)! (5.01) (6.59) (368.78)
Total 37537 - - 375.37 6.59 5.01 . 11.60 363.77
(375.37) = (375.37]' (1.58) (5.01) (6.59) (368.78)

4.1 Figures in bracket pertain to previous year

&
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NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2022

Note 6: Other Financial A
Unsecured and Considzred Good

Securiiy Depasits

Note 7. Non-current assets (Net)
Unsecured end Considered Good

Non Currenr Tax Assets (Net)

Unsecured and Considered Good
Prepaid Expenses

Note 9: inventories

Paw Matenials
Packing Maienais
Work-in-progress

Finished Goods (Including goods - in transit of Rs 7.48 Lakhs

(PY: Rs 12 98 Lakhs)

Stores and Spares

As at
31 March, 2022

Amount in Lakhs

As at
31 March, 2021

1291
12.91

0.14
0.14

762.61
244 54
4519

661.67

8.40
1,722.41

16.23
10.23

5.17
517

216

2.16

611.18
212.77
5333

45188

8.02

- 1,337.18

Trade Receivable and Inventories are pledged as primary security for cash credit obtained during the current year. (Refe- Note 15)
Rs Ml (Previous Year, 0.25 lakhs) amount of inventories were written off during the current year, Nil amount of reversal of write

down was ac.ourted during the current year

Cost of inventory recognised as an expense during the year is included in Note 25 and 26




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2022

Amount in Lakhs

Note 10: Trade Receivables As at As at
31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021
Unsecured, Considered Good * 2,357.56 2,190.82
Receivables - credit impaired 23.50 6.00
T 238106 I 2,196 82
Less: Aliowance for doubtful trade receivables (23.50) (6.00) )
2,357.56 2,190.82

* Includes Rs. 309 Lakhs (PY 20-21 Rs. 168 Lakhs) receivable from Parent Company - Kansai Nerolac Paints Limited

Trade Receivabie and Inventories are pledged as primary security for cash credit obtained during the current year. (Refer Note 18)
For terms and cenditions relaung ‘o related party, Refer Note 33

Trade Receivable are non-interest beanng and credit terms are generally from 30 to 120 days

As at 31/03/2022
Outstanding for following periods from due date of
. payment
Particulars Less than 6| 6 months 1-2 2-3 More than 3 Keial
months 1 year years years years
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 2,281.27 69.40 2.92 17.32 - 2.370.91
(11) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant |
increase in credit risk - - u a1 & .
(ii1) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - . - =
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant
increase in credit nsk - - - - & -
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - 1015 - - 10.15
Total 2,281,27 69.40 13.07 17.32 - 2,381.06
As at 31/03/2021
i Outstandiag for following periods from due date of
Particulars payment | Total
Less than 6] 6 months 1-2 7237 7 More than 3 i
months | 1 year years years | years |
(1) Undls_xguu:d Trade receivabies - considered good 2,120 66 3500 41.16 - - ,I 2,196.82
(i) Undisputed Trace Receivabies — which have significant l
increase in i xdit nsk - - - - - -
(i11) Und sputec. Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - - - -
{iv; Disputec Trade Receivables - which have significant
increase in credit risk = >, » 2 £ 2
(vi) Disputea Trade Receivables - credit impaired - - - - - g
Total 2,120.56 35.00 41.16 - - 2,196.82

Amount in Lakhs

As at As at
31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021
Note 11; Cash and cash equivalents
Cash o hand G2f 0,54
925 0.54

At 31 March 2022, the Company nad ava.lable Rs. 157 43 lakhs (31 March 2021, Rs. 298 57 iakhs} of undravs commiied borrowing facilities

Unsecured and Considered Good

Balances with Indirect Ta+ Authorities 48.13
Trade Advances 11076
Prepa:d Expenses 13.16
Other Receivable 8.06

180,11




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2022

Amount in Lakhs

Note 13: i As at As at
31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021

| Authorised Share Capital 2,000 2,000
Par Value per Share (in Rs) 10 10
Number of Equity Shares 2,00,00,000 2,00,00,000

2 Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid up 2,000 2,000
Par Value per Share (in Rs) 10 10
Number of Equity Shares 2,00 DDIDDU 2,00,00,0C0

3. Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Company hasissued one class of shares. i.c. equity shares, which enjoys similar rights in respect of voting,
payment of dividend and repayment of capital On winding up of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be
entitled to receive the residual assets of the Company, remaining after distribution of all preferential amounts in

proportion to the number of equuty shares held.

4 Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% of shares

Name of the shareholder % holding Number of
Shares
Kansai Nerolac Paints Limited - Holding Company 60% 1,20,00,000
Polygel Industries Private Limited 40% 80,00,000
Total ‘ 2,00,00,000

w

. Recorciliation of the number of shares outstanding:

Number of shares at beginning of the year 2,00,00,000
Issued during the year -
Number of shares at the end of the year 2,00,00,000

& Refer Note 39 on Capital Management.

% holding Number of

Shares
60% 1,20,00,000
40% 80,00,000

2,00.00,000

2,00,00,000

2,00,00,000




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2022

Note 14 : Other i

Amount in Lakhs

Particulars Retained Earnings Total
Balance as at 1 April, 2021 (457.79) (457.79)
Profit/(Loss) for the period (368.13) (368.13)
Other Comprehensive Income/(Expense) - Remeasurement of Defined (0.88) (0.88)
Benefit Liability

Total Comprehensive Income for the period (826.80) (826.80)
Balance as at 31, March 2022 (826.80) (826.80)
Particulars Retained Earnings Total
Balance as at 1 st Apnil, 2020 (86.34) (86.34)
Profiv(Loss) for the period (371.45) (371.45)
Other Comprehensive Income/(Expense) - Remeasurement of Defined - -
Benefit Liability

Total Comprehensive Income for the period {457.79) (457.79)
Balance as at 31, March 2021 14_5'7.79) (457.79)




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2022
Amount in Lakhs

Note 15: Borrowings As at As at
31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021

Secured loan

Term ioan fron: Bank 1,093.75 1,718.75
1,092.75 1,718.75

For the current maturities of long term borrowings Refer Note 18 “Other Financial Liabilities (Current)”

Term loan was taken from HDFC Bank which carries average interest @ 8.15 % per annum_ Loan is repayable afte: 1 year moratorium and
1 48 montas 1ill 28th November 2024, in 16 quarterly instalments along with interest, from the date of loan Loan is secured by following -
Primary security is Plant & Equipments at Rudrapur & Dadra location and Secondary security is Corporate Guarantee of Folygel Industries
Private Limited to the extent of 40% of total faciliues sanctioned and Letter of Comfort from Kansai Nerolac Paints Limited for 100% of the
total faciliies sanctioned. The purpose of loan was for purchase of assets from Polygel Industries Private Limited




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2022

Note 16; Deferred Tax Liabilities (net)

A. The major components of deferred tax (liabilities) / assets arising on account of timing differences are as follows:

Amount in Lakhs

(Charge) / Credit
Barticuiars As at recognised in As at
ke 1 April, 2021 | profit or loss for | 31 March, 2022
the period

Deferred tax iiabilities in relation to:
Difference between written down value/capital work in progress of fixed assets as| (65.85) (5.12) (70.97)
per the books of zccounts and the Income Tax Act,1961
Deferred tax assets in velation to:
Disaliowances under Section 40(a)(i) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 5.12 3.88 9.00
Unused tax losses, restricted to extent of deferred tax liabilities 60,73 1.24 61.97
Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) (net) & * ¥

Unrecognised deferred tax assets relate primarily to unabsorbed depreciation and unabsorbed business losses “vhich can be set off against

taxable profit in the future years from the year in which they originate.

Rs. In Lakhs

As at March 31,
2022

Rs In Lakhs

As at March 31,
2021

Deductibie temporary difterence, unused tax losses and unused tax credits for which no deferred tax asset has been recogn:sed are attributable

1o the following

Unabscrbed Depreciation (AY 20-21) -
Unabscrbed Depreciation (AY 21-22)
Business Loss (AY 21-22)

163.12
436.76
2512

16312

B. Since the Company bas 'mouited loss during the year ended 31st March, 2022 and 31st March, 2021 no tax 1s payable as per provisions of
Income Tax, 196, Accordingly, the calculation of effective tax rate is not relevant and hence, not given.
As at As at
31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021
Note 17 : Provisions
Provision for Gratity (Refer Note 34) 22.03 1103
22.53 11.03




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2022

Amount in Lakhs

As at As at
31March, 2022 31 March, 2021
Notes 18 Borrowings
Cash Credit 842.57 701.43
Current maturities of long term borrowings (Refer Note 15) 625.00 625.00
1,467.57 1,326.43

Cash Credit was taken from HDFC Bank which carries interest @ 9.2 % per annum, Cash credit is secured by following - Primary security
is Inventory and Receivable of the Company and Secondary security is Corporate Guarantee of Polygel Industries Private Limited to the
extent of 40% of total facilities sanctioned and Letter of Comfort from Kansai Nerolac Paints Limited for 100% of the total facilities
sanctioned. The purpose of loan is for working capital requirements of the Company

Note 19: Trade Payables

Trade Payables

Total Outstanding dues of Micro 108 54 269.19
Tota: Outstanding dues of 3,251.63 2,113.06
3,36017 2,382.25
e
For terms and conditions relating to related party, Refer Note 33
As at 31/03/2022
Particulars | Outstanding for following periods from
due date of payment -
Not Due Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More Total
year than 3
(1)MSME 108,54 < % = - 108.54
(11)Others 1,624 84 1,626.79 - - - 3,251.63
(111) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - -
1v) Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
Total 1,733.38 1,626.79 . E E 3,360.17
As at 31/03/2021
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from
due date of payment
Not Due Less than 1 1-2 years 1-3 years More Total
(DMSME 269.19 . - . . 269.19
(11)Others 1,685.62 427 44 - " - 2,113.06
| (ii1) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others | @ - i s -
Total 1,954.81 | 427.44 - = v 2,382.25
Note 20: Other Fi ial Liabiliti
Trade Deposits 14373 13274
Creditors for Capital Goods % 2.79
interestacerued but not due on
borrowings 11.90 15.69
Payable to Stafy’ 6.93 6.19
162.56 18741
Note 21: Other Current Liabilities
Statutory Obligations 73.57 6.25
Trade Receivables with Cred:it
Balance 28.27 8.05
101,84 14.30
Note 22 ; Short Term Piovisions
Provision for Leave Absences {Refar Note 24) 5.92 2.18
Provision for Gratuity 0:25 0.05

617 2.23




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Year Ended
31 March, 2022

Amount in Lakhs

Year Ended
31 March, 2021

N 3 T ration

Sale of Products

Sales
Less: Discounts & Rebates

Total Sale of Products
Other Operaring Revenues

Scrap Sales
Others

Revenue from Operations

Note 23.1 Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
The Company derives revenue from sale of products from following;

Particulars

1. Revenue from contract with Customers -

Sale of products (Transferred at point in time)
Manufacturing

India
(A)
2 Orher Operaung Revenue
Scrap Sales '
Others
(B)
Total Revenue (A)+ (B)

Major Product Lines
Adhesives, Construction Chemicals and Sealants

Major Product Lines
Upon Delivery

Reconciliation of revenue from contract with customer as per Ind AS 115:
Revenue from contracts with customer as per the contract price
Adjustments made to contract price on account of;
Discounts and Rebates
Other operating revenue
Revenue from contracts with customer as per the Statement of Profit & Loss

23.2 Contract Balances

Contract Assets
Trade Recervables

Contract Liabilities
Trade Keceivable with Credit balances

Note 24: Other Income

Other Non operating Income

Foreign Exchange Gain (Net)
Interest Received

Interest on Income Tax Kefund
Miscelizneous Income

11,273 38 7,085 82
256.01 108.12
11,017.37 6,977.70
2431 13.01
= 6.82
2431 19.83
11,041.68 6,997.53
11,273.38 7,085.82
11,273.38 7,085.82
2431 13.01
- 6,82
24 31 19.83
11,297.68 7,105.65
LB
11,273 38 7,085.82
11,273.38 7,085.82
11,273.38 7,085 82
i1,273.38 7,085.82
11,273.38 7,085.82
(256.01) (108.12)
2431 19.83
—Tode 5397.53
— L
226756 2,190.82
2827 8.05
450 275
910 -
G333 -
£7 015
T 774 - 2.90




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Amount in Lakhs
Year Ended Year Ended
31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021
Note 25: Cost of Materials Consumed
Raw Matenal Consumed
Opening Stock 611.18 36047
Add. Purchase 8,044 89 4,689 80
Less' Closing Stock 762.61 611.18
7,893 46 4,439 09
Packing Material Consumed
Opening Stock 212: 77 17635
Add. Purchase 1303.27 87936
Less: Sales 96.73 1421
Less: Closing Stock 244.54 21277
1,174.77 828.73
9,068.23 5,267 82
Note 26: es in Inventories of Finished Goods and Work-in-progress
Opening Stock
Finished Gouds 451 88 188.46
Work-in-progress 5333 4167
505.21 230.13
Less. Closing Stock
Fushed Goods 661.67 451.88
Work-in-progress 45.19 53.33
_— —_—
706.8¢ 505.21

51\')1.(:5! !27!’:,'38




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCTAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Amount in Lakhs

Year Ended Year Ended
31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021
Note 27: Employee Benefits Expense
Salaries and Wages 60412 526.05
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 2514 2221
Gratuity Expenses 13.28 1108
Leave Absences Expenses 3.74 2,18
Staff Welfare Expense 1122 4.27
£57.50 565.79
Note 28: Finance Cost
interest on Term Loan 158.01 212.82
Interest on Cash Credit 63.17 42.42
231.18 255.24
Note 29: Depreciation and Amortisation
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 140.93 141.14
Depreciatnon on Right of Use Asset 5.01 5.01
Amortisation on Other Intangible Assets 150 84 190,84
336,78 336.99
_—
_Note 30; Other Expenses
Freight and Forwarding Charges 455.93 34971
Adverusement and Sales Promotion 139.70 290.47
vabour Charges 163.72 139.98
Rates and Taxes 156 11.81
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 90,56 59 47
Royalty Charges 83.42 5638
Miscellaneous Expenses 188.62 315.30
1,325.51 1,22:.12
Auditors remuneration excluding taxes (Included in Miscellaneous Expenses in
Note no 30)
As Auditor
Statutory Audit 675 6.00
Report under Section 44AB of the Income-tax Act, 1961 100 1.00
Limited Keview of Quarterly Results 225 225
Certification and Other Matters 030 -
Kembursements of Expenses 0.20 .29

T TIns0 554




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2022
Amount in Lakhs

Note 31; Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

[ssue of Bank Guarantee

Note 32; Earnings Per Equity Share
Numerator:

Profit/(Loss) attributable ic Equity Shareholders

Denominator.
Weighted Average Number of ordinary shares (In Lakhs)

Basic and Diluted Earnings per Equity Share (in Rs.)

As at
31 March, 2022

As at
31 March, 2021

7.98 7.50
Year Ended Year Ended
31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021
(369.01) 1371.45
200.00 200.00
(1.85) (1.86)




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2022

Note 33; Rel rty Disclosur

A related party is & person or entity that is related to the entity that is preparing its Financial Statements

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to a reporting entity if that person:

(1) has control or joint control of the reporting entity;

(11) has significant influence over the reporting entity, or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the reporting entity or of a parent of the reporting entity

(b) An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of the following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related 1o
the others),

(i1) One enrity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which the other entity
is a member).

{1ii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity

{v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the reporting entity or an entity related to the reporting
enuty. If the reporting entity is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the reporting entity

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a)

(vii) A person identifiea in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a ber of the key personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity)

{vi1i) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management personnel services to the reporting entity or to the
parent cf the reporting entity.

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between a reporting entity and a related party, regardless of whether a
price is charged

Parties where control exist -

Ulvmate Hoiding Company
- Kansai Painis Co,, Ltd (Japan)
Parent Company
" - Kansai Nerolac Paints Limited

Other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the penod:

F'Entihes with Significant [nfluence
H - Polygel Industries Privace Limited

Key Management Personnel

- Mr. Anuj Jain, Non Executive Director w.e.f. 17 July, 2019
= Mr Prashant Pai, Non Executive Director w.e.f 17 July, 2019
- Mr. jason Gonsalves, Non Executive Director w.e.f. 17 July, 2019
] - Mr. Ginsh Nachane, Non Executive Director w.e.f. 25 April, 2020
| -Mr Luv shah, Non Executive Director w.e.f 25 January, 2021
4 - Mr. Kuldeep Raina, Chief Executive Officer w e f 25 January, 2021
j‘ - Mr. Anil Phatangare. Chief Operating Officer w e.f 3 January, 2020
- Mr. Parag Oak, Chief Financial Officer w.e f 3 January, 2020
| - Mr Shashank Sthalekar, Company Secretary w.e.f 3 January, 2020
| -M: Rukmuni Subramanian, Company Secretary w e f 17 March, 2022
|




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2022
Note 33: Related Party Disclosures

Disclosure of transactions with related parties
Amount in Lakhs

Sr, No.  |Tranmsactions Year Ended Year Ended
31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021
1 Purchase of Raw Materials
- Polygel Industries Private Limited - 036
2 Sale of finished goods
- Kansai Nerolac Paints Limited 235294 7717.23
- Polygel Industries 0.56) -
3 Royalty Charges
- Kansai Nerolac Paints Limited 83.42 56.38
4 Job Work Charges
- Western India Packaging - 14.11
5 Reimbursement of Expenses Receivable
- Polygel Industries Private Limited 2.09) 3764
6 Reimbursement of Expenses
- Polygel Industries Private Limited - 203
- Parag Oak 495 3.13
- Anil Phatangare 5.50 4.94
- Shashank Sthalekar - 0.10
7 Remuneration
- Parag Oak (Remuneration is paid by Kansai Nerolac Paints Limited and the 2061 19.10
same is reimbursed by Company as Deputation Charges)
= Rukumini Subramanian s =
- Shashank Sthalekar - 346
- Anil Phatangare 38.18 35.00

*As the future liabilities for gratuity and leave encashment are provided on an actuarial valuation basis for the Company as a whole, the amount
pertaining to individual is not ascertainable and therefore not included above

Disclosure of Balances with related parties
Amount in Lakhs

Sr. No. Balances . Year Ended Year Ended
31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021

8 Receivable

- Kansai Nerolac Paints Limited 300.52 167.59
9 Advances receivable

- Polygel Industries Private Limited 8.53 48.12
10 Payables

- Polygel Industries Private Limited - 4233

- Kansai Nerolac Paints Limited 43.57 1231

The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm'’s length transactions. This assessment is undertaken
in each financial period through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates
Qutstanding balances as at 31 March, 2022 are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash.




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2022

Amount in Lakhs
Note 34: Employee Benefits
A Defined Contribution Plans
Contribution to defined contribution plan, recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss under Company’s Contribution to Provident Fund in Employee Benefits Expenses
for the period is as under:
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended ‘.

31 March, 2022

31 March, 2021

Employer's contribution to Regional Provident Fund
|Commissioner

25.14

22.21

Defined Benefit Plans:
a. Gratuity

The following tables set out the funded of the grawity plans and the amount recognised in the Company Financial Statements

as at 31st March, 2021 and 31st March, 2022

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021
Defined benefit obligation at the beginning 11.08 .
Current service cost 12.60 11.08
Interest Expense 0.68 -
Benefit payments from plan assets (2.06) -
Remeasurements-Due to Financial Assumptions (1.39) 0.07
R Due to Exp e Adjustments 228 (0.07)
Remeasurements- actuarial gains/(losses) - -
Defined benefit obligation at year end 2319 11.08
Change in fair value of plan assets
Particulars Year Ended ll Year Ended
31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning - -
Interest income - &
Employer contributions - -
Benefit payments from plan assets - -
Remeasurements- refurn on plan assets excluding amounts
included in interest income - -

Fair value of plan assets at the year end
Net liability

Components of Defined Benefit Cost recognized in the Statem

ent of Profit and Loss under Employee Benei'lt Expenses:

Particulars

Year Ended
31 March, 2022

Year Ended

1
31 March, 2021 |

Current Service Cost i2.60 11.08
! Net Interest Cost 063 -
Defined Benefit Cost recognised in the Statement of Profit and | |
Loss 1228 | 11,08 |

Components of Defined Benefit Cost recognized in the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income:

Particulars

Year Ended
31 March, 2022

Year Ended
31 March, 2021

Actuanal (gains) / losses on Defined Benefit Obligation 0.8% -
{Rewrn)/loss or: plan assets excluding amounts included in the
| aeviatevest on the net defined benefit liability/(asset) - -
Defined Benefit Cost recognised in the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income ' 0.88 -
The assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost are set out below:

Year Fnded Year Ended

Particulars

31 March, 2022

31 March, 2021

Discount Rate 7.38% 6.76%
Salary Escalation 6.00% 6.00%
Weighted average duration of the dzfined benefit obligation

(years) 17.14 15.08




Sensitivity Analysis:

Discount Rate, Salary Escalation Rate and Withdrawal Rate are significant actuarial assumptions. The change in
the Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation for a change of 100 Basis Points from the assumed assumption is

given below:
Scenario Year Ended Year Ended
31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021

Under Base Scenario 23.19 11.08

Salary Escalation - Up by 1% 25.55 1236

Salary Escalation - Down by 1% 21.10 9.96

Withdrawal Rates - Up by 1% 2284 10.78

Withdrawal Rates - Down by 1% 23.50 1137

Discount Rates - Up by 1% 21.18 10.02

Discount Rates - Down by 1% 2550 1231

Expected Rate of Return on Planned Asset 7.38% 6.76%

Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligations

Mortality Table As at As at
31-03-2022 31-03-2021

L Attained Age Male Female Male Femaie
20 0.09% 0.09% 0.09% 0.09%
25 0.09% 0.09% 0.09% 0.05%
30 0.10% 0.10% 0.10% 0.10%
35 0.12% 0.12% 012% 0.12%
40 0.17% 0.17% 0.17% 017%
45 026% 0.26% 0.26% 0.26%
50 0.44% 0.44% 0.44% 044%
55 6.75% 0.75% 0.75% 075%
650 1.12% 1.12% 1.12% 1.12%

C. Compensaied Absences

Amount of Rs. 3,74 Lakhs ( PY 20-21 Rs, 2.18 Lakhs ) has been recognised in the statement of profit and loss as an expense for compensated absences.




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2022
Note 35: Segment Reporting

The Management Committee of the Company, approved by the Board of Directors performs the function of allotment of resources and
assessment of performance of the Company. Considering the level of activities performed, frequency of their meetings and level of finality of
their decisions, the Company has identified that Chief Operating Decision Maker function is being performed by the Management
Committee, The financial information presented to the Management Committee in the context of results and for the purposes of approving the
annual operating plan is on a consolidated basis for various products of the Company. As the Management Committee monitors the business

" acuvity as a single business segment viz. Adhesives, Construction Chemicals and Sealants, and the sales substantiaily being in the domestic
market, the financial statement are re‘lective of the information required by Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments”




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2022
Note 36: Fil ial Instruments: ries of Financial In: nt and Fair

A. Categories of Financial Instrument

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilites, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy

Amount in Lakhs

Year Ended31 March, 2022 Fair Value Fair Value through Amortised Cost
through Profit and Other Comprehensive
Loss Income

Financial Assets

Secunty depasit - - 1261
Trade Receivables i - 2,357.56
Cash and Cash Equivalent - - U.25

Financial Liabilities

Long Term Borrowings - - 1,093.75
Short Term Borrowings - - 1,467.57
Trade Payables - - 3,36017
Other Current Financial Liabihties - - 162.56
As at Fair Value Fair Value through Amortised Cost
31 March, 2021 through Profit and Other Comprehensive

Loss Income

Financial Assets

Secunity deposit - - 1023
Trade Receivables - - 2,19082
Cash and Cash Equivalent - - 054
Financial Liabilities

Long Term Borrowings - - 1,718.75
Short Term Borrowangs - - 1,326 43
Trade Payables - - 238225
Other Current Financial Liabilities - - 15741

B. Fair Value Hierarchy
The management assessed the carving value of financial assets and liabilines carmed at ‘amortised cost’ approximate their fair value largely due to the short
tenm matunties of these instruments.

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company's assets and liabilities

Fair value measurement using

As at Quoted prices in  Significant observable Significant

31 March, 2022 active markets inputs unobservable inputs
(Level 1) (Levei 2) (Level 3)

Assets carried at amortised cost

Secunty deposit - - 1291

Trade Receivables - - 2,357.56

Cash and Cash Equivalent - - 0.25

Liabilities carried at amortised cost

Long Term Borrowings - - 1.093.75
Short Term Borrewings - - 1,467.57
Trade Payables - - 336017
Other Current Financial Liabilities - - 162 56

Fair value measurement using _—

As at . Quoted prices in  Significant observable Significant

31 Mareh, 2021 i active markets inputs unobservable inputs
(Level 1) {Levei 2} (Level 3)

Assets carried at amortised cost

Secunty deposit - - 10.23

Trade Receivables - - 219082

Cash und Cash Ezuivalent . - .54

Liahilivies carried at amortised cost

1.ong Term Borrowings - - 1,713.75
Stort Term Borrowings - - 1.326.43
Trade Payables - - 2,382.25

Other Current Financial Liabilines - - 157.41




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2022

Note 37: Fi Risk M

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprisc short term loans and borrowings, trade payables and other payables. The main purpose of these financial
liabilities i§ to finance the Company’s operations and to provide guarantees to support its operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include loans to
employees, trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and
procedures and financial risks are identified d and aged in d with the Company’s policies and risk objectives The Company's financial
risk management policies are set as per the guidelines

i) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market price comprises
three tvpes of risks: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity price risk. The objecuve of market risk
management 15 lo manage and control murket risk exp within ble p 5, while opty g the return, In respect of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, the Company’s policy 15 to ensure that its net exposure 15 kept to an acceptable level,

iiy Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency nsk is the risk that the far value or future cash flows of an exposure will uctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Company’s exposure to the foreign currency risk arising mamly due to its operating activities and thus the nisk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates
pramarily to rade pavables.

The most significant forcign currencies the Company is expased to is the USD and EURO

Fureign currency exposure Amount in Lakhs
Financial Assets Year End Euro UsDh Total
Trade Receivable 31-03-2022 & = £

31-03-2021 - = -
Total Financial Assets |_31-03-2022 “ # be
1-03-2021 £ = =
Finuncial Liubilities Year End Euro usb Total
Trade Payablc 31-03-2022 - - -
31-03-2021 - 31.08 31.08
Total Financial Liabilities 31-03-2022 - - -
31-03-2021 - 31.08, 31.08
fNet expasure to Foreign 31-03-2022 - - -
(3L,08)|  (31.08)

|Curveney Risk (Liabilities) | 31-03-2021 | g

Foreign currency sensitivity

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity o a reasonably possible change n USD and EURO exchange rate, with all other variabics held constant, The

impact on the Company's profit/(loss) before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities.

Amount in Lakhs
Description Year Ended Year Ended
31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021
Increase by 5% Decrease by 5% Increase Decrease by
by 5% 5%
UsD - - (1.55) 1.55
EURO ” . - ®
Increase/(decreasei to Profit o/ - - {1.55) 1588

i) Credut Risk
Credit Risk is the risk of financial ioss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and
anises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers and loans . The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk
exposure.

Trade Receivables

The Company’s exposure to credit risk 18 influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of cach The Risk M C ittee has established
a credil policy under which cach new customer is analysed individually for creditworthiness before the Company's standard payment and delivery terms and
conditions are offered. The Company’s review includes financial statements. credit agency information, industry information and in some cases bank references
Saies lmits are established for cach and reviewed Any sales ding those limits require approval from the management,

Financial Instruments and Cash Depaosits

Credit nsks from balances with banks and financial institutions i1s managed by the Company’s Treasurv Department in accordance with the Company's policy
Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. The limits are set to minimise
the conceniration of risks and therefors mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s potential failure to make payments.

iv) Liguidity Risk
Liquidity nisk the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obhgations associated with its financial liabilines that are settled by delivering
cash or another financial asset. The Company's approach to managing Liquidity is 1o ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient Liquidity to meet its

liabilities when thev are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or nisking damage to the Company’s reputation.

The table below summarses the maturity profile of the Compamy s financial liabilities:
Amount in Lakhs

[ Year Ended 31 March. 2022 | Year Ended On Demand Upto |3months | 6monthy | 1 vearte |3 years und Total
3 months w 0y year 3 years above
Borrowings 31-03-2022 842.57 - - - 52500 | 468 T 19365z |
21-03.2021 701.43 1,250.00 468.75 2420.18
Trade Payables 31-03-2022 - 3,360.17 - - - - 3,360.17
31-02-202! 238225 138225
Other Financial Liabilitics 31-03-2022 150.67 11.50 156.25 468.75 - - 787.57
3i-03-2021 141.72 15.69 156.25 468.75 - 78241 |
Total . 31-03-2022 993,24 | 3,372,007 156.25 468.75 625.00 468.75 6,084.06 |
31-03-2021 843.15 | 2,397.94 156,25 | _ 46B.75 1,250.00 468.75 5,584.84 |




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2022

Note 38: Disclosure under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 are provided as under for the period 2021-22, to the
extent the Company has received intimation from the “Suppliers” regarding their status under the Act.

Amount in Lakhs
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021
a The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each 108 .54 269.19

accounting period;
— Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises
— Interest due on above

b. The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006, along with the
amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting period

¢. The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but
beyond the appointed day during the period) but without adding the interest specified under MSMED A.ct, 2006.

d. The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting period,

¢ The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding periods, until such date when
the interest dues ag above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditure under Section 23 of MSMED Act, 2006,




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2022

Amount in Lakhs
Note 39: Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves
attributable to the equity halders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise
tive shareholder value

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the
raquirements of the financisl covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The current capitai structure of the Company is
equity based with financing through long term borrowings.

As at As at
31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021
Long Term Borrowings including Current Maturities 1,718.75 2,343.75
Short Term Borrowings 84257 701.43
Less Cash and Cash Equivalents 0.25 0.54
Net debt 2,561.07 3,044.64
Fauity 1,173.20 1,542.21
Total capital 1,173 26 1,542.21
Capital and net debt 4 3,734.27 4,586.85
Gearing ratio 69% 66%

Tiere have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current peried




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2022

Note 40 - Ratio Apalysis and its Elements

Particulars Numerator Denominator " 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021 % Variance|  Reason for Variance
Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 083 0.96 =13.5%
Debt Equity Total Debt Shareholders Equity 2.18 1.97 10.6%
Earnings for debt
service = Net profit | Debt service =
after taxes + Non- Interest & Lease Due to increase in
Debt Service Coverage !cash operating Payments + Principal Principal repayment in
Ratio expenses Repayments 023 054 -56.5% |current year.
Average Shareholders
ROE Net profit after taxes |equity -27.2% -21.5% S.T'/.l
Inventory Turnover  [Cost of goods scld | Average Inventory 580 472 -22.7%
| Net credit sales =
|Trade Receivables Gross credit sales - | Average Trade Tmproved collections
Turnover sales return Receivable 4.84 360 -34.5% |inspite of increase n sales
Net credit purchases
= (Gross credit
Trade Payables purchases - purchase |Average Trade
Turnover return Payables 326 2.66 =22.3%
| Working capital =
| Nzt sales = Total Current assets - Due to increase in sales in
'Net Capital Yusnover |sales - sales reum Current liabilities (12.43) (40.11) 69.0% |current vear
Net Profit ratio Net profit Net Sales =3.3% =5.3% =2.0%
Capital Employed = | H
Tangible Net Worth + | |
Return on Capital Earnings before Total Debt + Deferred |
Employed jinterest and taxes Tax Liability 5% 6%| -1.2%
|
Interest (Finance |
Return on Inv Income) Investment NA NA lNA

2 MUMBAI




NEROFIX PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2022

Note 41: Other Statutory Information

()The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the company for holding any Benami
property.
(i1)The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off.
(1ii)The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period
(1v)The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
(V)The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a)directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

(b)provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
(vi)The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Group shall:

(a)directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b)provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
(vii)The Company has not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income

during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax
Act, 1961

Note 42: Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19:

“The Company has considered the impact of COVID-19 pandemic on its business operations and financial statement based on its
review of current indicators of future economic conditions and expects that the carrying amount of the assets will be recovered.
However, the impact assessment of this pandemic is a continuing process given the uncertainties associated with its nature and
duration. Accordingly, the Company will continue to monitor any material changes to future economic conditions. There is no
significant impact on its financial statements as at 3 1st March 2022."

Note 43: Comparative Figures for Previous Period

Previous year figures are regrouped and recast wherever necessary to make them comparable with the figures of the current year,
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